
Plan Commission
Meeting Agenda - October 09, 2019

Page | 1

PUBLIC NOTICE & AGENDA
PLAN COMMISSION

2400 Springbrook Court, Beloit, WI  53511
7:00 PM

Wednesday, October 09, 2019

1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL

2. MINUTES
2.a. Consideration of the minutes of the September 18, 2019 Plan Commission meeting

Attachment

3. PUBLIC HEARINGS
3.a. Consideration of a Conditional Use Permit to allow an outdoor  seating area  in the CBD-1,

Central Business District-Core, for the property located at 414 Pleasant Street.
Attachment

3.b. Consideration of Planned Unit Development Master Land Use Plan Amendment to add an
additional duplex in lieu of storm water detention at the property located at 1920 Whipple Street.

Attachment

4. STATUS REPORT ON PRIOR PLAN COMMISSION ITEMS

5. ADJOURNMENT

** Please note that, upon reasonable notice, at least 24 hours in advance, efforts will be made to accommodate the
needs of disabled individuals through appropriate aids and services. For additional information to request this service,
please contact the City Clerk's Office at 364-6680, 100 State Street, Beloit, WI 53511.

1

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/446907/09-18-2019_Plan_Commission_minutes.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/447241/October_9_Staff_Report_3_a___CU-2019-05__414_Pleasant_Street__Outdoor_Seating_CBD-1.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/446923/October_9_Staff_Report_3_b___PUD-2019-06__Amendment_-_addtional__Duplex__1920_Whipple_Street.pdf


 

1 | P a g e  
 

 
 

MEETING MINUTES 
PLAN COMMISSION 

2400 Springbrook Court, Beloit, WI  53511 
Wednesday, September 18, 2019 

7:00 PM 
 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 

Meeting was called to order at 7:00PM. Commissioners Haynes, Johnson, Weeden, 
Faragher, Ruster, Finnegan, Robson, and Councilor Preuschl were present.  

 
2. MINUTES 

a. Consideration of the minutes from the September 4th, 2019 Plan Commission 
meeting 
Commissioner Weeden made a motion to approve the minutes. Commissioner 
Johnson seconded the motion. Motion carried, voice vote. 
 

3. REPORTS 
a. Consideration of Planned Unit Development Master Land Use Plan for a mixed use/ 

rowhouse redevelopment for the property located at 511 Public Ave 
Community Development Director, Julie Christensen, presented the staff report and 
recommendation. 
 
Commissioner Robson asked what a Condo Plat was. Ms. Christensen stated that it is 
similar to the Preliminary Plan that identifies where each condominium unit will be 
located on the site.  Once approved, it is recorded.   
 
Commissioner Faragher opened the public hearing. 
 
Commissioner Robson asked how much the townhomes will sell for. Glenn Serdar, 
Hendricks Commercial Properties, said that they do not have a number range, that it 
will be determined by the market but they are working on it. Commissioner Robson 
asked if the parking in the back is above ground. Mr. Serdar stated there will be a 
parking lot with 45-47 stalls in the back. 
 
Commissioner Johnson asked if each of the units will be about 2,500-2,700 square 
feet. Mr. Serdar said somewhere in the 2,400 square foot range with no basement, 

2



 

2 | P a g e  
 

ground floor, and two car garage parking. Commissioner Weeden asked if the parking 
lot would be open to the public. Mr. Serdar said it would be overflow parking, allowing 
access to all of the surrounding areas. Commissioner Finnegan asked who would own 
the parking lot. Mr. Serdar said Hendricks Commercial Properties said they will retain 
ownership, and they will develop it as a single parcel. 
 
 Commissioner Weeden asked who will control the retail space. Mr. Serdar indicated 
that Hendricks Commercial Properties would continue to own it and lease out the 
space. Commissioner Weeden asked if they would put a buffer between the property 
line and Scoville parking lot. Mr. Serdar said they will put up a 3-4 foot retaining wall, 
due to the grade difference between the sites. Councilor Preuschl asked if they have to 
remove the bus shelter. Ms. Christensen stated that it didn’t need to be moved.  
 
Commissioner Haynes moved to approve the PUD Master Land Use Plan, seconded by 
Commissioner Johnson.  Motion carried, voice vote.   
 

b. Consideration of a Zoning Map Amendment from R-4, Moderate-Density Multifamily 
Residential, to PUD, Planned Unit Development, for the property located at 511 
Public Ave 
Community Development Director, Julie Christensen, presented the staff report and 
recommendation. 
 
Commissioner Faragher opened and closed the public hearing. 
 
Commissioner Haynes moved to approve the Zoning Map Amendment, seconded by 
Commissioner Weeden. Motion carried, voice vote. 
 

c. Consideration of Planned Unit Development Master Land Use Plan for a mixed 
use/apartment redevelopment for the property located at 200 West Grand Ave and 
525 Cross St 
Community Development Director, Julie Christensen, presented the staff report and 
recommendation. 
 
Commissioner Weeden asked if there are limited first floor commercial uses in the 
Central Business District or in what way are the commercial uses limited. Ms. 
Christensen stated they are putting a limited amount of commercial uses, that 
description refers to the amount of space and not the type of use. Commissioner 
Johnson stated that the City is not setting any limits on the commercial use.  
 
Commissioner Faragher opened the public hearing. 

 
Commissioner Johnson asked what the total number of parking spaces would be on 
the property, and would there be enough parking. Ms. Christensen said there were at 
least 200 stalls in the development including parking underneath the building. 

3



 

3 | P a g e  
 

 
Dan Barkes and Kevin Biskey, 525 Third St, representing Hendricks Commercial 
Properties, introduced themselves to the Commission.  Mr. Barkes stated that the 
buildings would have 27 to 30 parking spaces under the ground, and they are working 
with Batterman’s and City Staff with site plans to have the most efficient layout to 
provide the most parking for that property. Mr. Barkes stated that by code they do not 
have to have parking on site, but are offering it. 
 
 Ms. Christensen mentioned that the site can be developed without any parking 
required at all since the underlying zoning district is Central Business District. Mr. 
Biskey said that they have looked at going beneath ground, but with being right by the 
river, the ground water is only 4-5 feet down, and they would not be able to go as 
deep. Councilor Preuschl asked if they need to build the site up in order to 
accommodate flooding, and if they meet the setbacks. Mr. Barkes said the building 
pads will be built up, keeping the parking garage out of the flood plain. Ms. 
Christensen stated that there are no front setbacks, buildings in the downtown can be 
constructed up to the sidewalk. 
 
Commissioner Faragher asked about the location of the pedestrian walk way which 
would be used as a fire lane access. Mr. Barkes said they are going to lift the curb, and 
it will be gated and pedestrian friendly, not vehicle friendly, and the Fire Department 
will have access to the key. Councilor Preuschl asked what the time lines will be on 
finishing the project. Mr. Barkes said they are working with contractors and designers 
for a foundation release, and want to get in the ground within the next couple of 
weeks. Mr. Barkes stated building A should be done by fall 2020.  
 
Commissioner Johnson asked how much they would lease the units for. Mr. Barkes 
said they would be leased in the 1,200-1,300 range. Commissioner Faragher asked if 
they are doing anything with the landscape. Mr. Barkes said they are working with the 
City Staff on some ideas on how to create interconnectivity with the bike path and the 
development. Ms. Christensen said the City Staff met, and they may want to keep 
some separation until they get buildings occupied and see where it goes.  
 
Commissioner Faragher closed the public hearing. 
 
Commissioner Finnegan moved to approve the PUD Master Land Use Plan, seconded 
by Commissioner Johnson. Motion carried, voice vote. 
 

d. Consideration of a Zoning Map Amendment from CBD-1, Central Business District-
Core, to PUD, Planned Unit Development, for the property located at 200 West 
Grand Ave and 525 Cross St 
 
Community Development Director, Julie Christensen, presented the staff report and 
recommendation. 

4



 

4 | P a g e  
 

 
Commissioner Faragher opened and closed public hearing. 
 
Commissioner Johnson moved to approve the Zoning Map Amendment, seconded by 
Commissioner Haynes. Motion carried, voice vote. 
 

4. STATUS REPORT ON PRIOR PLAN COMMISSION ITEMS 
Julie Christensen stated that the City Council approved the sidewalk easement at 1750 
Branigan Road and the three lot certified survey map that was referred back to Plan 
Commission. City Council also approved the Comprehensive Plan Amendment for 
downtown and the Development Agreement for the Oaks.  
 

5. ADJOURNMENT 
Motion was made by Commissioner Ruster, seconded by Commissioner Robson to adjourn 
the meeting.  Motion passed, voice vote.  Meeting adjourned at 7:50pm. 
 
 
Minutes respectfully submitted by Amber DesRoberts. 

 
 
 

5



October 9 Staff Report 3(a), CU-2019-05, 414 Pleasant Street, Outdoor Seating CBD-1 

 
 

REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION 
 
Plan Commission Meeting Date:  October 9, 2019 

Agenda Item:  3(a) 

File Number:  CU-2019-05 

 

General Information 

 
Applicant:  Thomas Morgan  
 
Owner:  Amy Arnold 
 
Address/Location:  414 Pleasant Street 
 
Applicant’s Request:  The applicant has applied for a Conditional Use Permit to allow an outdoor seating area 
in the CBD-1, Central Business District Core, for the property located at 414 Pleasant Street. 
 

Background 

The applicant has proposed the construction of a 44-foot by 27.5-foot enclosed outdoor seating area behind 
the building for a Tap Room. The outdoor area would serve as seating for patrons. The Zoning Ordinance 
states that outdoor seating areas in the CBD are only allowed if reviewed and approved in accordance with the 
CUP review procedures. 

 
Staff Analysis 

 
Existing Conditions:  The building is part of a mixed-use development. The second floor has two residential 
rental units and the first floor has two commercial tenants. One is an office use for State Farm Insurance and 
the other a Tap Room for Cheez Head Brewery that is currently under construction.  
 
Surrounding Land Use and Zoning:  To the north, east, south, and west of the subject property zoning is CBD-
1, Central Business District Core, and includes the following uses: The Ironworks Hotel, Hotel Goodwin, The 
Hendricks Center for the Arts, Truck’t, and Blue Collar Coffee.   
 
Proposed Outdoor Seating Area:  The attached renderings illustrate the design concept. The applicant has 
noted that the seating area will include decorative fencing, seasonal landscaping, and lighting. The attached 
Public Notice was sent to the owners of surrounding properties. Planning staff has not received any 
comments. 
 
Off-Street Parking Requirements:  There are no minimum off-street parking requirements in the Central 
Business District, which is served by on-street parking and City-owned public parking lots.  
 
City of Beloit Comprehensive Plan:  The City’s Downtown Plan recommends Planned Mixed Uses for the 
subject property. This request and the underlying CBD zoning classification are consistent with this 
recommendation. Consideration of this request supports City of Beloit Strategic Goal #3 by encouraging 

6



October 9 Staff Report 3(a), CU-2019-05, 414 Pleasant Street, Outdoor Seating CBD-1 

economic growth. 
 
Municipal Utilities:  The subject property receives the full range of municipal services. 
   
Review Agent Comments:  The following comment has been received: 

• AT&T:  There are existing facilities on the property.  Any relocation will be compensable. 

• Alliant Energy: The string lights proposed in the renderings need to keep a clearance of five feet from 
overhead service lines. 

• Police Department:  The police department would like to make sure there is adequate lighting to the 
outdoor seating area.  

 
 
Findings of Fact: Based on Section 2-504 of the Zoning Ordinance, the Plan Commission shall make a 
recommendation based on the following considerations: 

a. Whether the establishment, maintenance, or operation of the conditional use will be detrimental to 
or endanger the public health, safety, morals, comfort, or general welfare; 

• Subject to conditions of approval the proposed outdoor seating area is not expected to be 
detrimental to public health or welfare. 

b. Whether the conditional use will be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in the 
immediate vicinity for purposes already permitted; 

• The improvement and occupancy of the subject property as a Tap Room establishment is 
fully compatible with the adjacent food service and other commercial uses. 

c. Whether the conditional use will substantially diminish or impair property values within the 
neighborhood of the subject property; 

• The proposed outdoor seating area will enhance the central business district and is 
consistent with retail and entertainment-oriented nature of the surrounding land uses. 

d. Whether the establishment of the conditional use will impede the normal and orderly development 
and improvement of the surrounding property; 

• The surrounding area is fully developed. 
e. Whether the exterior architectural design or site layout of the proposed conditional use is so 

dissimilar or otherwise incompatible with existing or proposed development in the immediate 
neighborhood that it will cause a depreciation in property values; 

• The proposed outdoor seating area will consist of materials, furnishings, and accessories 
that are compatible with the contemporary urban design of the district.  

f. Whether adequate utilities, access roads, drainage or other necessary facilities will be available to 
serve the proposed use at the time of its occupancy or use; 

• Adequate facilities and infrastructure are available and currently serve the property. 
g. Whether adequate measures will be taken to minimize traffic congestion; and  

• Customers will continue to utilize on-street parking and City-owned parking lots. A recent 
SLATS study concluded that there is ample parking in downtown Beloit.  

h. Whether the conditional use will comply with all applicable regulations of the Zoning Ordinance. 

• The applicant will comply with all other applicable regulations of the Zoning Ordinance. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

7



October 9 Staff Report 3(a), CU-2019-05, 414 Pleasant Street, Outdoor Seating CBD-1 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  
The Planning & Building Services Division recommends approval of a Conditional Use Permit to allow an 
outdoor seating area in the CBD-1, Central Business District Core, for the property located at 414 Pleasant 
Street, based on the above Findings of Fact and subject to the following conditions: 

1. This Conditional Use Permit authorizes the outdoor seating area as shown in the application 
attachment A and the extension of the possession, sale & consumption of alcohol onto said area, 
subject to all of the conditions below. 

2. Music may not be played in the outdoor seating area after 10:00 PM. 
3. The addition of a meat smoker is not approved at this time and requires Plan Commission approval if 

proposed in the future.  
4. Any major changes in the adopted conditions or use of the property shall be approved by the Plan 

Commission and City Council by amending this Conditional Use Permit. The Director of Planning & 
Building Services may approve minor changes administratively. 

 
Code Requirements: 
In addition to the above permit conditions, the following provisions of existing City Ordinances shall apply: 

1. Before constructing the outdoor seating area, the applicant shall obtain an Architectural Review 
Certificate and a Building Permit as required by Code. 

2. The maximum capacity of the outdoor seating area shall be determined by the Building Official prior to 
issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy for the building, and shall be posted accordingly. 

3. If required the applicant shall obtain the appropriate liquor license for the premises to include the 
outdoor seating area. 

4. In accordance with Section 2-506 of the Zoning Ordinance, the applicant shall have twelve (12) months 
from the date of CUP issuance to complete construction and commence use of the outdoor seating 
area, or the CUP shall lapse and be of no further effect. 

 
ATTACHMENTS:  CUP Decision Form, Location & Zoning Map, Photos, Renderings, Floor Plan, Application, 
Public Notice, & Mailing List. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

8



October 9 Staff Report 3(a), CU-2019-05, 414 Pleasant Street, Outdoor Seating CBD-1 

Beloit Plan Commission 
Conditional Use Permit Decision Form 

 
When reviewing an application for a conditional use, the local government must look to the 
requirements and conditions found in the local zoning ordinance and determine if the applicant 
meets those requirements and conditions.  The local government must provide substantial 
evidence supporting their decision to grant or deny the permit, and to impose additional 
conditions on the permit.  Substantial evidence means facts and information, directly relating 
to the requirements and conditions, that a reasonable person would accept in support of a 
conclusion.  Personal preferences and speculation are not sufficient forms of evidence.  All 
requirements and conditions imposed by the local government must be reasonable, and to the 
extent, practicable, measurable. 
 
Ordinance Requirements 
 
List ordinance requirements related to the conditional use permit: 
1. Before constructing the outdoor seating area, the applicant shall obtain an Architectural 

Review Certificate and a Building Permit as required by Code. 
Substantial Evidence:  The Architectural Review Code requires review & approval of all 
exterior changes to commercial buildings. There are no active permits or approvals in place 
for this project.  

 
2. The maximum capacity of the outdoor seating area shall be determined by the Building 

Official prior to issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy for the building, and shall be posted 
accordingly. 
Substantial Evidence:  All commercial buildings must have a maximum occupancy posted in 
order to protect against overcrowding and to ensure patron safety. 
 

3. If required the applicant shall obtain the appropriate liquor license for the premises to 
include the outdoor seating area.  
Substantial Evidence:  In order to sell, consume, or possess alcohol in the outdoor seating 
area or in 414 Pleasant building, a liquor license must be obtained. 
 

4. In accordance with Section 2-506 of the Zoning Ordinance, the applicant shall have twelve 
(12) months from the date of CUP issuance to complete construction and commence use of 
the outdoor seating area, or the CUP shall lapse and be of no further effect. 
Substantial Evidence:  This requirement encourages the applicant to proceed with 
construction of the approved improvements in a timely manner.   
 

Does the applicant meet all of the ordinance requirements?  No   Yes, after the 
steps above 
 
 
 

9



October 9 Staff Report 3(a), CU-2019-05, 414 Pleasant Street, Outdoor Seating CBD-1 

Permit Conditions 
 
A local government is authorized to impose conditions on the permit that relate to the purpose 
of the ordinance.  Conditions must be reasonable, and to the extent, practicable and 
measurable.  Conditions may limit the permit’s duration, transfer, or renewal. 
List conditions imposed on the permit:  
 
1. This Conditional Use Permit authorizes the outdoor seating area shown in the application 

attachments and the extension of the possession, sale & consumption of alcohol onto said 
area, subject to all of the conditions below. 
Substantial Evidence:  The Zoning Ordinance states that outdoor seating areas in the CBD 
are only allowed if reviewed and approved in accordance with the CUP review procedures. 
 

2. Music may not be played in the outdoor seating area after 10:00PM. 
Substantial Evidence:  To ensure that this commercial business does not interfere with the 
use and enjoyment of adjacent properties, including the upstairs apartments, this condition 
is being imposed. 
 

3. The addition of a meat smoker is not approved at this time and requires Plan Commission 
approval if the proposed in the future.  
Substantial Evidence: The addition of a meat smoker to an outdoor seating area with the 
central business district is an increase in land use intensity that impacts the general welfare 
of the adjacent properties. This addition must comply with the Conditional Use Permit 
review procedure.  

 
4. Any major changes in the adopted conditions or use of the property shall be approved by 

the Plan Commission and City Council by amending this Conditional Use Permit. The 
Director of Planning & Building Services may approve minor changes administratively. 
Substantial Evidence:  Standardized condition to establish a process for future changes. 

 
Decision:  Based on the findings of fact, conclusions of law, and the record in this matter, the 
permit is: 
 

Approved, with the conditions stated above 
Denied, for the following reasons: 

10



October 9 Staff Report 3(a), CU-2019-05, 414 Pleasant Street, Outdoor Seating CBD-1 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

L
e

g
e

n
d

Z
o

n
in

g
 C

la
s

s
if

ic
a

ti
o

n

<
a

ll 
o

th
e

r 
v
a

lu
e

s
>

R
E

G
U

L
A

T
IO

N
C

L
A

S
S

IF
IC

A
T

IO
N

C
-1

C
-2

C
-3

C
B

D
-1

C
B

D
-2

D
H

M
-1

M
-2

M
R

O

P
L

I

P
U

D

R
-1

A

R
-1

B

R
-2

R
-3

R
-4

P
a

rc
e
l 
P

o
ly

C
it
y
 L

im
it
s
 (

C
o

rp
 P

o
ly

)

11



October 9 Staff Report 3(a), CU-2019-05, 414 Pleasant Street, Outdoor Seating CBD-1 

 
 

Attachment A 

12



October 9 Staff Report 3(a), CU-2019-05, 414 Pleasant Street, Outdoor Seating CBD-1 

 
 
 
 

 

13



October 9 Staff Report 3(a), CU-2019-05, 414 Pleasant Street, Outdoor Seating CBD-1 

 

14



October 9 Staff Report 3(a), CU-2019-05, 414 Pleasant Street, Outdoor Seating CBD-1 

 

15



October 9 Staff Report 3(a), CU-2019-05, 414 Pleasant Street, Outdoor Seating CBD-1 

 

16



October 9 Staff Report 3(a), CU-2019-05, 414 Pleasant Street, Outdoor Seating CBD-1 

 

17



October 9 Staff Report 3(a), CU-2019-05, 414 Pleasant Street, Outdoor Seating CBD-1 

18



October 9 Staff Report 3(a), CU-2019-05, 414 Pleasant Street, Outdoor Seating CBD-1  

 

 
 CITY HALL • 100 STATE STREET • BELOIT, WI 53511 

 Office: 608/364-6700 • Fax: 608/364-6609 
 www.beloitwi.gov 
 Equal Opportunity Employer 

NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC 
 

September 23, 2019 
 
To Whom It May Concern: 
 
Thomas Morgan has filed an application for a Conditional Use Permit to allow an outdoor 
seating area with the possession, sale, & consumption of alcoholic beverages in the CBD-1 
Central Business District-Core, for the property located at: 
 

414 Pleasant Street. 
 
The applicant has proposed the construction of a 44-foot by 26-foot enclosed outdoor seating 
area behind the building. The outdoor area would serve as seating for patrons, and a meat 
smoker.  
 
The following public hearings will be held regarding this proposed Conditional Use Permit: 
 
City Plan Commission:  Wednesday, October 9, 2019, at 7:00 PM, or as soon thereafter as the 
matter can be heard in the Engineering & Utilities Building, 2400 Springbrook Court, Beloit, 
Wisconsin. 
 
City Council:  Monday, October 21, 2019, at 7:00 PM, or as soon thereafter as the matter can be 
heard in the Engineering & Utilities Building, 2400 Springbrook Court, Beloit, Wisconsin. 
 
 

THE PUBLIC IS INVITED TO ATTEND THESE HEARINGS. 
 

We are interested in your opinion. 
 
Anyone bringing handouts to the Plan Commission meeting must bring ten (10) copies and 
submit them to the Recording Secretary before the meeting begins.  Staff is unable to leave the 
meeting area to make copies. 
 
For additional information, please contact Hilary Rottmann, in the Planning & Building 
Services Division at (608) 364-6708 or rottmannh@beloitwi.gov.   Comments will be accepted 
via telephone, email, and U.S. Mail. 19



October 9 Staff Report 3(a), CU-2019-05, 414 Pleasant Street, Outdoor Seating CBD-1 

 
 

   
HENDRICKS COMMERCIAL 

PROPERTIES LLC 
525 THIRD ST STE 300 
BELOIT WI 535116225 

 

  

   
FIRST NATIONAL BANK & TRUST 

COMPANY OF BELOIT 
345 E GRAND AVE 
BELOIT WI 53511 

 

  

   
BELOIT COLLEGE BOARD OF 

TRUSTEES 
700 COLLEGE ST 
BELOIT WI 53511 

  

   
C/O JAMES E DOSCHADIS 

JAMES E DOSCHADIS REVOCABLE 
TRUST OF 2014 

2634 CHATSWORTH DR 
BELOIT WI 53511 

 

  

   
CENTRE 1 BANCORP INC 

345 E GRAND AVE 
BELOIT WI 53511 

 

  

   
BETSEY SCHMIECHEN BELOIT 

VILLAGER LLC 
429 E GRAND AVE 

BELOIT WI 535116228 

 

  

   
THE FLYING PIG TREAT SHOPS INC 

431 E GRAND AVE 
BELOIT WI 53511 

 

  

   
SUDS OHANAHANS REAL ESTATE 

1804 HENDERSON AVE 
BELOIT WI 53511 

 

  

     

20



 
 
 

REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION 
 
Plan Commission Meeting Date:  October 9, 2019 

Agenda Item:  3(b)  

File Number:  PUD-2019-06 

 

General Information 

 
Applicant:  R.H Batterman 
 
Owner:  Jeff Adleman 
 
Address/Location:  1920 Whipple Street 
 
Applicant’s Request/Proposal:   
 
R.H. Batterman, on behalf of Jeff Adleman, has submitted an application for review and consideration of a 
Planned Unit Development (PUD) - Master Land Use Plan Amendment for 1920 Whipple Street to add an 
additional duplex on the subject property in lieu of storm water detention.  
 
Planned Unit Development (PUD) Process:  A PUD is a type of special purpose zoning district and a type of 
development plan. PUD zoning districts are inextricably linked to PUD plans; no rights of development apply to 
a PUD zoning designation other than those of the approved PUD plan. PUDs are processed in three stages: 
Master Land Use Plan; Rezoning to PUD district and Final (Site) Plan. Master Land Use Plans and Zoning Map 
Amendments may be processed concurrently, provided that no rezoning to the PUD district may occur until 
approval of a PUD Master Land Use Plan. 
 
The PUD Master Land Use Plan application is reviewed with respect to such issues as density, including the 
number, type, and location of dwelling units and other uses; impacts on surrounding areas; and the 
adequacy of facilities and services. The result of this review is the establishment of the basic parameters for 
development of the PUD. The PUD Final (Site) Plan is the document upon which building permits and other 
applicable approvals are issued. The applicant must submit the detailed and technical information necessary 
to demonstrate that all applicable standards, requirements, and conditions have been met. 
 

Staff Analysis 

 
Project Summary:   

The applicant has submitted an application for a PUD – Master Land Use Plan Amendment to add an 
additional duplex on the subject property in lieu of storm water detention. The applicant was approved for a 
PUD – Master Land Use Plan for a redevelopment project involving the construction of storage unit buildings 
and duplexes on the properties located at 1405 Madison Road & 1402 Townline Avenue in 2016. The subject 
property is Lot 1 of a CSM that subdivided this PUD. The storage units have been constructed, but the 
duplexes have not.  

21



 
Existing Site Conditions:  The subject property is currently vacant undeveloped land.  

 
Surrounding Land Use and Zoning:  To the north is Converse Elementary School zoned PLI, Public Lands and 
Institutions. To the East are single-family homes zoned R-1B Single-Family Residential.  To the south is the self-
storage unit development that is a part of the applicants’ PUD, Planned Unit Development. To the west is 
Advanced Autosports zoned C-2, Neighborhood Commercial.   
 
City of Beloit Comprehensive and Strategic Plan:  The Future Land Use Map (Map 10) of the City of Beloit 
Comprehensive Plan, states Community Commercial for this property. The approved PUD mixes commercial 
use (storage units) with residential (duplexes) making the redevelopment compatible with surrounding land 
uses and zoning.  
 
Zoning Ordinance Requirements:    

Density/Intensity and Dimensional Standards:  Staff is purposing a 20 foot front and street side yard 
setback and 10 foot setback on interior side yards.  The proposed density is 2 units on 0.25 acres or 8 
units per acre. The proposed PUD development includes open space in excess of the 15% required for 
PUD projects. 
 
Building Design:  The maximum height shall be two stories for the duplex building. A landscape buffer 
shall be installed between the storage units and duplexes consisting of 15 landscaping units per linear 
foot.  The owner will need to install public sewer in the easement along the rear lot line to serve the three 
duplex buildings. Construct of public sidewalks along Whipple Street in front of the duplexes to connect to 
Townline Avenues sidewalk is required.  
 
Roadway Access:  The City Engineer shall approve the location of the duplex driveways.  

   
Review Agent Comments: The review agents have reviewed the proposed PUD and offered the following 
comments: 

• AT&T:  There are existing facilities on the property.  Any relocation will be compensable. 

• Water Resources: Each building will need a separate lateral connection to the public sewer. There is an 
existing manhole in the terrace on the west side of Townline Road that can be connected to. A 
development agreement is required for public improvements  

 
PUD Master Land Use Plan Review Criteria:  Applications may be approved if the following criteria are met: 
 

1. The plan represents an improvement over what could have been accomplished through strict 
application of otherwise applicable zoning ordinance standards, based on the purpose and intent 
of this chapter.  
Amending the current Master Land Use Plan will allow for development of vacant underutilized land 
and contribute to infill development.  

 
2. The PUD Master Land Use Plan complies with the PUD district standards of Section 5-300.  

The proposed PUD will provide for efficient use of public utilities and vacant land, and will be an 
attractive addition to the Madison Road Corridor. The development will increase housing stock within 
the City.  
 22



3. The City and other service providers will be able to provide necessary public services, facilities, and 
programs to serve the development proposed, at the time the property is developed;  
As a redevelopment site, the property is already served with some utilities and facilities. Any 
relocation/replacement costs will be borne by the developer. 
 

4. The development is consistent with and implements the planning goals and objectives contained in 
the Comprehensive Plan and other adopted policy documents; and  
The proposed development is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan’s recommended commercial 
uses. The proposed development will create two new dwelling units (a total of six in the PUD) in 
close proximity to an elementary school, and will bring a significant redevelopment to an area that 
has experienced very limited redevelopment activity. 

5. The PUD Master Land Use Plan is consistent with sound planning practice and the development 
will promote the general welfare of the community.  
The proposed PUD is compatible with existing nearby uses and the surrounding residential and 
institutional zoning classifications, and will allow redevelopment of an underutilized parcel. 

 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION – PUD MASTER LAND USE PLAN: 
The Planning & Building Services Division recommends approval of the PUD – Master Land Use Plan 
Amendment for the property located at 1920 Whipple Street, subject to the following conditions: 

1. This approval authorizes the construction of one duplex building.  
2. The permitted use includes R-2 Two-Family uses. The front and street side building setbacks shall be 20 

feet and 10 feet on the interior side yard for all three duplexes. The maximum height shall be two 
stories for the duplex building. 

3. A landscape buffer shall be installed between the storage units and duplexes consisting of 15 
landscaping units per linear foot. 

4. The location of the duplex driveways must be approved by the City Engineer.  
5. Public Sanitary Sewer shall be installed in an easement along the rear lot lines to serve the proposed 

duplexes. A development agreement will be required for sewer construction. 
6. Prior to issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy, the applicant shall, at applicant’s cost, construct public 

sidewalks along Whipple Street in front of the duplexes and connect to Townline Avenue sidewalk. 
7. Prior to issuance of a Building Permit for this project, the applicant shall submit a PUD Final Plan that 

reflects the conditions above and detailed site & architectural plans for Planning staff review and 
approval. 

8. All conditions from the previous PUD resolution remain in full force and effect.  
9. Any major changes in the adopted conditions or use of the property shall be approved by the Plan 

Commission and City Council by amending this PUD – Master Land Use Plan. The Director of Planning & 
Building Services may approve minor changes administratively and allow accessory structures and uses 
that comply with and meet all of the standards and requirements of the City of Beloit Municipal Code. 

 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  Location Map, Amended PUD - Master Land Use Plan, 2016 PUD Master Land Use Plan, 2016 
Resolution, Application, Public Notice, and Mailing List. 
 
 
 
 
 

23



 
 
 
 

L
e

g
e
n

d

Z
o

n
in

g
 C

la
s

s
if

ic
a

ti
o

n

<
a

ll 
o

th
e

r 
va

lu
e

s>

R
E

G
U

L
A

T
IO

N
C

L
A

S
S

IF
IC

A
T

IO
N

C
-1

C
-2

C
-3

C
B

D
-1

C
B

D
-2

D
H

M
-1

M
-2

M
R

O

P
L

I

P
U

D

R
-1

A

R
-1

B

R
-2

R
-3

R
-4

P
a

rc
e

l P
o

ly

C
ity

 L
im

its
 (

C
o
rp

 P
o

ly
)

24



October 9 Staff Report 3(b), PUD-2019-06, Amendment - addtional  Duplex, 1920 Whipple Street Street 

 

      

Proposed PUD – Master Land Use Plan 

25



October 9 Staff Report 3(b), PUD-2019-06, Amendment - addtional  Duplex, 1920 Whipple Street Street 

 
2016 PUD – Master Land Use Plan 

26



October 9 Staff Report 3(b), PUD-2019-06, Amendment - addtional  Duplex, 1920 Whipple Street Street 

27



October 9 Staff Report 3(b), PUD-2019-06, Amendment - addtional  Duplex, 1920 Whipple Street Street 

28



October 9 Staff Report 3(b), PUD-2019-06, Amendment - addtional  Duplex, 1920 Whipple Street Street 

 

29



October 9 Staff Report 3(b), PUD-2019-06, Amendment - addtional  Duplex, 1920 Whipple Street Street 

 
 

30



October 9 Staff Report 3(b), PUD-2019-06, Amendment - addtional  Duplex, 1920 Whipple Street 

 
 

NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC 
 

September 23, 2019 
 
To Whom It May Concern: 
 
R.H. Batterman, on behalf of Jeff Adleman, has submitted an application for review and 
consideration of a Planned Unit Development (PUD) - Master Land Use Plan Amendment for 
the property located at: 

1920 Whipple Street 
 
The applicant is seeking approval of a PUD Amendment to construct an additional duplex to the 
Master Land Use. The original PUD for this site was approving back in 2016, which included 
construction of self-service storage buildings with two duplexes.  A copy of the proposed plan is 
attached. 
 
The following public hearings will be held regarding these applications: 
 
City Plan Commission:  Wednesday, October 9, 2019, at 7:00 PM, or as soon thereafter as the 
matter can be heard in the Engineering & Utilities Building, 2400 Springbrook Court, Beloit, 
Wisconsin. 
 
City Council:  Monday, October 21, 2019, at 7:00 PM, or as soon thereafter as the matter can be 
heard in the Engineering & Utilities Building, 2400 Springbrook Court, Beloit, Wisconsin. 
 

THE PUBLIC IS INVITED TO ATTEND THESE HEARINGS. 
We are interested in your opinion. 

 
Anyone bringing handouts to the Plan Commission meeting must bring ten (10) copies and 
submit them to the Recording Secretary before the meeting begins. 
 
For additional information, please contact Hilary Rottmann, in the Planning & Building 
Services Division at (608) 364-6708 or rottmannh@beloitwi.gov.  Comments will be accepted 
via telephone, email, and U.S. Mail. 
 
 
 
 
 

31

mailto:rottmannh@beloitwi.gov


October 9 Staff Report 3(b), PUD-2019-06, Amendment - addtional  Duplex, 1920 Whipple Street 

 
 

SCHOOL DISTRICT OF BELOIT 

1500 FOURTH ST  

BELOIT WI 53511 

 

DAVID WHEELER 

1928 WHIPPLE ST  

BELOIT WI 53511 

 

AMERCO REAL ESTATE COMPANY 

2727 NORTH CENTRAL AVE STE 500 

PHOENIX AZ 85004 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

32


	Plan Commission Agenda
	2018-1777 - Attachment
	2018-1768 - Attachment
	2018-1769 - Attachment

